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I am seeking reversal of the order entered by the bankruptcy court on June 29, 2021, and the judgment by 

default entered on August 4, 2021, discharge of the fraudulently created debt, and dismissal of Appellee’s 

complaint with prejudice.  See doc. nos. 199 and 228, respectively.  This appeal is brought pursuant to 

Canons 3(B)(6) and 3(C)(1)(a) and (e) of the Code of Conduct for United States Judges; the Rules of 

Professional Conduct; F. R. B. P. 5004(a); F. R. Civ. P. 37(a)(4); F. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(3); 18 U.S. Code § 2, 

18 U.S. Code § 3, 18 U.S. Code § 4, 18 U.S. Code § 152, 18 U.S. Code § 157, 18 U.S. Code § 241, 18 

U.S. Code § 1001, 18 U.S. Code § 1018, 18 U.S. Code § 1341, 18 U.S. Code § 1349, 18 U.S. Code § 

1519, 18 U.S. Code § 1621, 18 U.S. Code § 1623, and 18 U.S. Code § 3057; 18 U.S. Code Chapter 47 

(generally); 28 U.S. Code § 455; 28 U.S. Code § 1930(f)(1); and the Due Process Clause of the Fifth 

Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT 

This court has jurisdiction under F. R. A. P. 6.  A “person aggrieved” “whose rights or interests are 

directly and adversely affected pecuniarily by the decree or order of the bankruptcy court” may 
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appeal. Fondiller v. Robertson (In re Fondiller), 707 F.2d 441, 442-43 (9th Cir.1983) (internal 

quotations and other citations omitted).  “Litigants are ‘persons aggrieved’ if the order [appealed 

from] diminishes their property, increases their burdens, or impairs their rights.” GMAC v. Dykes (In 

re Dykes), 10 F.3d 184, 187 (3d Cir. Nov. 30, 1993) (citing Fondiller, 707 F.2d at 442).  The “person 

aggrieved” test is meant to be a limitation on appellate standing in order to avoid “endless appeals 

brought by a myriad of parties who are indirectly affected by every bankruptcy court order.”  Holmes 

v. Silver Wings Aviation, Inc., 881 F.2d 940 (10th Cir. 1989).  From In re American Ready Mix, Inc., 

14 F.3d 1497, 1499 (10th Cir. 1994).: “As the appellant, it was Mr. Lopez’s duty to establish and include 

in each opening brief a statement of this court’s jurisdiction to consider his appeals. Fed.R.App.P. 

28(a)(2).”  This brief is due by October 3, 2022.  A final judgment by default denying discharge was 

entered on August 4, 2021.  See doc. no. 228. 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES 

1. Kristin Tavia Mihelic, original attorney for Appellee, (hereinafter “Mihelic”) and Louise DeCarl 

Adler, now retired judge for the bankruptcy court, (hereinafter “Adler”) ignored rules of 

procedure, the codes of conduct, the law, and the U.S. Constitution and have lied dozens of times 

and committed numerous crimes against me. 

2. Adler was heavily biased and ruled incorrectly throughout the proceedings, which has resulted in 

tremendous prejudice against me, injustice, and several fraudulent orders, including a fraudulent 

terminating order. 

3. This isn’t an appeal that hinges on the subtleties of the rule of law; it’s an appeal that hinges on 

blatant crime, corruption, and the complete disregard of the rule of law.  Small schisms exist 

between positions of the opposing sides in the former, whereas colossal canyons exist between 

positions of the opposing sides in the latter. 
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FACTS AND TRAVEL 

1. On December 23, 2005, I commenced a civil action in the corrupt Taunton District Court in the 

People’s Republic of Massachusetts against an entity for violating a contract in the amount of 

$4,313.95. 

2. On August 27, 2014, upon my MOTION FOR DEFAULT JUDGMENT dated July 31, 2014, the 

court rightfully awarded me a default judgment in the amount of $11,271.53 because the 

defendant in that matter, through her counsel, a lawyer-criminal named Joseph L. Michaud 

(hereinafter “Michaud”) who is now a judge-criminal, had taken no legal action in the case.  They 

did, however, take ample illegal action by violating rules of procedure, the code of conduct, and 

civil and criminal laws. 

3. Shortly afterward, corruption began to rear its ugly head.  The court illegally vacated the original 

default judgment on September 8, 2014, again on September 15, 2014, and once again on 

November 9, 2014.  The first of which occurred after the court received a mere phone call from 

Michaud—and in flagrant violation of the rules of procedure and the Due Process Clause of the 

Fourteenth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

4. The defendant in that matter filed a fraudulent answer and counterclaim nearly nine years late on 

September 30, 2014, as a result of the issuance of the default judgment. 

5. After September 2014, I filed various complaints against Michaud, certain court personnel, and 

other entities for various misconduct and crimes including, but not limited to, perjury, fraud, 

conspiracy to commit fraud, misprision of felony, various violations of state criminal code, and 

much more.  All were dismissed without investigation despite rock-solid evidence of wrongdoing. 

6. After telling me not to contact the court, denying me a trial, holding clandestine hearings when 

the court knew I could not be present, and violating many rules of procedure and civil and 

criminal laws in a concerted effort to steer that case in the direction they wanted it to go, the court 
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awarded a $32,913.30 fraudulent judgment to the defendant in that matter on November 3, 2015.  

Coincidentally, this figure was quite close to the damages requested ($31,438.31) in my 

MOTION FOR DEFAULT JUDGMENT.  Visit http://www.stloiyf.com/evidence/letter.htm for a 

summary of some of the misconduct in the original case.
1
 

7. Unbeknownst to me, the defendant in that matter entered the fraudulent judgment as a foreign 

judgment in Rhode Island on February 3, 2016, and attached property in that state I’ve not owned 

since 2014. 

8. I learned of the judgment in early 2020 and filed a chapter 7 bankruptcy on February 28, 2020, to 

prevent the imminent sale of the aforementioned property and the loss of approximately 40 

percent of my income as manager of that property.  If I had been living in Rhode Island, I would 

have simply fought the matter there, had it dismissed, and not filed bankruptcy.  However, I could 

not afford to be repeatedly travelling across the country to resolve the matter nor pay a local 

attorney to resolve it for me, which I would have had to have done since virtual hearings were not 

allowed for pro se litigants—which is a clear act of discrimination against a class, i.e., the class of 

pro se litigants, thus violating the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the 

U.S. Constitution. 

9. On July 30, 2020, Appellees filed a baseless complaint against me objecting to discharge despite 

several notifications from me and ample proof that the judgment was in fact fraudulent. 

10. The corrupt bankruptcy court entered a fraudulent order striking my answer and entering a default 

on June 29, 2021, and a final order of judgment by default on August 4, 2021.  Various other 

fraudulent orders and rulings have been entered in that matter. 

11. As a result of their mountain of misconduct and crime during my bankruptcy and adversary 

proceeding, I’ve been forced to sue those responsible—Mihelic, Carroll, and Adler—in state 
                                                                                                               

1
 Under the incorporation by reference doctrine, a court may consider documents whose contents “are not physically 

attached to” the filing. In re Silicon Graphics Inc. Sec. Litig., 183 F.3d 970, 986 (9th Cir. 1999). 
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court.  I specifically chose state court because the likelihood they have friends there should be 

lower than in federal court.  See Superior Court of California, County of San Diego, case number 

37-2021-00037057-CU-NP-CTL. 

12. Because the courts continue to refuse to follow law and instead rule in favor of their criminal 

friends, I’ve been forced to file daily complaints with the Department of Injustice’s (hereinafter 

“DOI”) Office of the Inspector General and the Office of “Professional” Responsibility.  I’ve 

been forced to file weekly criminal complaints with the Federal Bureau of Iniquity, to reach out 

to various media outlets, to file complaints with the attorney and judicial oversight boards, to 

write weekly letters to senators who are members of the Senate Judiciary Committee, to write 

guest posts on Sara Naheedy’s blog, and to write not one, but two books, which illustrate the 

rampant crime and corruption that permeate the infected U.S. judiciary.  I’ve been forced to stop 

paying income taxes until the $949,719.37 (as of today) that the government owes me is paid in 

full, which projections show won’t occur for more than 2,100 years. 

SUMMARY 

Adler made conclusions of law based solely on false claims—some perjurious—by Mihelic and 

predetermined the outcome of the case without looking at real evidence.  She was extremely biased and 

ignored everything I submitted, which includes evidence of misconduct and criminal behavior by Mihelic, 

and failed to take corrective action according to canonical rules.  Adler failed to recuse.  Mihelic failed to 

acknowledge the fraud that gave rise to the bankruptcy.  She omitted words in some court documents and 

added falsities in others, which Adler then rubber-stamped.  Mihelic lied well in excess of 35 times and 

perjured herself on many occasions in an effort to steer the adversary case in the direction she wanted it to 

go to help other criminals.  They all intentionally ignored rules of procedure, the code of conduct, the law, 

and the U.S. Constitution and committed numerous federal and state crimes against me.  The fraudulently 

created debt was not discharged as a result of blatant misconduct and corruption. 
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GENERAL LEGAL STANDARDS 

Bias 

Academia and Congress have weighed in regarding biased judges.  “Rather than leave the decision 

regarding disqualification to the judge’s own opinion, new section 455(a) required that a judge recuse 

himself ‘in any proceeding in which his impartiality might reasonably be questioned.’  Implicit in this 

language is the abolition of the duty to sit; the inference is expressly supported by the Senate and House 

Reports [H.R. Rep. No. 93-1453, 93d Cong., 2d Sess. 2 (1974)] which state that no duty to sit exists when 

there is a reasonable question of the judge’s impartiality.”  See Ellen M. Martin, Disqualification of 

Federal Judges for Bias Under 28 U.S.C. Section 144 and Revised Section 455, 45 Fordham Law Review 

1, 1976 at 147. 

The courts have also weighed in.  The U.S. Supreme Court held in Taylor v. Hayes, 418 U.S. 488 

(1974), “marked personal feelings were present on both sides” quoting Mayberry v. Pennsylvania, 400 

U.S. 455 (1971), and “another judge should have been substituted.”  The high court also held, “A fair trial 

in a fair tribunal is a basic requirement of due process.  Fairness, of course, requires an absence of actual 

bias in the trial of cases.  But our system of law has always endeavored to prevent even the probability of 

unfairness” (emphasis added).  See In re Murchison, 349 U.S. 133 (1955).  Moreover, the U.S. Supreme 

Court noted in Rippo v. Baker, 580 U.S. ___ (2017), that “[u]nder our precedents, the Due Process Clause 

may sometimes demand recusal even when a judge ‘ha[s] no actual bias.’  Recusal is required when, 

objectively speaking, the probability of actual bias on the part of the judge or decisionmaker is too high to 

be constitutionally tolerable.” 

The existence of the facts listed in 28 U.S. Code § 455(b) requires recusal even if the judge 

believes s/he didn’t create an appearance of impropriety.  Any circumstance in which a judge’s 

impartiality might reasonably be questioned, whether or not addressed in section 455(b), requires recusal 

under section 455(a).  See Liljeberg v. Health Servs. Acquisition Corp., 486 U.S. 847, 860 n.8 (1988).  

Subsection 455(b)(1) requires a judge to disqualify himself “[w]here he has a personal bias or prejudice 

concerning a party, or personal knowledge of disputed evidentiary facts concerning the proceeding.”  The 
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standard for determining disqualification is “whether a reasonable person would be convinced the judge 

was biased.” See Brokaw v. Mercer County, 235 F.3d 1000, 1025 (7th Cir. 2000) (citing Hook v. 

McDade, 89 F.3d 350, 355 (7th Cir. 1996)).  “Recusal under Section 455(b)(1) ‘is required only if actual 

bias or prejudice is proved by compelling evidence.’”  Id. at 1025. 

Ex parte contacts can result in reversals.  Ex parte contacts contributed to the D.C. Circuit’s 

decision to remand a case to a different trial judge.  “[C]oncerned by the district judge’s acceptance of ex 

parte submissions,” the court thought that “the appropriate course would have been simply to refuse to 

accept any ex parte communications.”  United States v. Microsoft Corporation, 56 F.3d 1448 at 1464.  

There have been several ex parte motions and communications in my case between Adler and Appellee.  

See, for example, doc. nos. 20, 108, 123, 126, and 129 and/or exhibit “A.”  I’m sure there have been non-

published others. 

Fraud 

Adler, Appellee, and others at the DOI have done nearly everything wrong and illegal in this case.  

Current rulings and orders cannot legally stand because courts have declared that a litigant cannot benefit 

by her own misdeeds or illegal acts as Appellee is trying desperately to do in the instant case.  

“‘[Equitable estoppel] is wholly independent of the limitations period itself and takes its life, not from the 

language of the statute, but from the equitable principle that no man will be permitted to profit from his 

own wrongdoing in a court of justice.’  (Battuello, supra, 64 Cal. App. 4th 842, 847-848, 75 Cal. Rptr. 2d 

548, quoting Bomba v. W.L. Belvidere, Inc. (7th Cir. 1978) 579 F.2d 1067, 1070.)” Lantzy v. Centex 

Homes, 73 P. 3d 517 (Cal. 2003) (emphasis added to the highest degree). 

Regarding the rampant fraud in the case at bar, https://www.justice.gov/archives/jm/criminal-

resource-manual-1007-fraud states: “One court has observed, ‘[t]he law does not define fraud; it needs no 

definition; it is as old as falsehood and as versatile as human ingenuity.’ Weiss v. United States, 122 F.2d 

675, 681 (5th Cir. 1941), cert. denied, 314 U.S. 687 (1941).  The Fourth Circuit, reviewing a conviction 

under 18 U.S.C. § 2314, also noted that ‘fraud is a broad term, which includes false representations, 
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dishonesty and deceit.’  See United States v. Grainger” (emphasis strongly added).  I’ve proved and will 

further prove that the preceding three elements have dominated this case. 

F. R. Civ. P. 60(b)(3) provides that “[o]n motion and just terms, the court may relieve a party or 

its legal representative from a final judgment, order, or proceeding for the following reasons: fraud 

(whether previously called intrinsic or extrinsic), misrepresentation, or misconduct by an opposing party” 

(emphasis added).  This rule requires a party to “show that [he] has a meritorious claim that [he] was 

prevented from ‘fully and fairly presenting’ at trial as a result of the adverse party’s fraud, 

misrepresentation, or misconduct.” Wickens v. Shell Oil Co., 620 F.3d 747, 758–59 (7th Cir. 2010).  In 

ascertaining whether a party has been prevented from fully and fairly litigating its case, the court need not 

find that the fraud would necessarily have altered the outcome of the trial so long as the party is 

prejudiced in the presentation of its case.  Lonsdorf v. Seefeldt, 47 F.3d 893, 897 (7th Cir. 1995) (“[I]t is 

unnecessary for Lonsdorf to establish that the misrepresentation altered the outcome of the trial.  It is 

sufficient that prejudice has occurred.”) (emphasis added).  It’s not just the opposing party who is 

responsible for fraud and misconduct that prejudiced my case; Adler has gone along for the ride. 

Perjury 

From U.S. v. Arizona, 703 F. Supp. 2d 980, 1002 (D. Ariz. 2010): 

The provisions of Title 18.....make it a federal crime to, in any matter within the 

jurisdiction of the federal government:  

18 U.S. Code § 1001 (a):  (1) falsify, conceal, or cover up any material fact; (2) 

knowingly make or use a materially false, fictitious, or 

fraudulent statement; or (3) make or use any false 

writing or document. 

18 U.S. Code § 1621:  commit perjury by knowingly making a false statement 

after taking an oath to tell the truth during a proceeding 

or on any document signed under penalty of perjury. 

Civil Penalty for Fraud and Perjury 

A “court has inherent power ‘to fashion an appropriate sanction for conduct which abuses the judicial 

process.’ Chambers v. NASCO, Inc., 501 U.S. 32, 44-45, (1991).” Salmeron v. Ent. Rec. Sys. Inc., 579 

F.3d 787, 793 (7th Cir. 2009), and it has inherent power to sanction a party who “has willfully abused the 
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judicial process or otherwise conducted litigation in bad faith.” Id.  “As we recognized in Roadway 

Express, outright dismissal of a lawsuit, which we had upheld in Link, is a particularly severe sanction, 

yet is within the court’s discretion” Chambers v. Nasco, Inc., 501 U.S. 32, 45 (1991).  From JFB Hart 

Coatings, Inc. v. AM Gen. LLC, 764 F. Supp. 2d 974, 981-82 (N.D. Ill. 2011), “Although Rule 37 requires 

violation of a judicial order before a court imposes sanctions, ‘[c]ourts can broadly interpret what 

constitutes an order for purposes of imposing sanctions’ and a formal order is not required.  This broad 

latitude ‘stems from the presumption that all litigants.....are reasonably deemed to understand 

that.....committing perjury is conduct of the sort that is absolutely unacceptable.’” 

INTRODUCTION 

I’ve spent more than 11,000 hours on this case since its true inception, and I am beyond furious!  Crime 

and corruption by actors in the associated bankruptcy and related matters is unequivocally apparent.  I’ve 

been denied due process every step of the way since the true genesis of these proceedings nearly two 

decades ago.  I am asking this court to begin changing that despicable pattern.  I don’t like writing papers 

that are continually ignored.  As can be seen from my writing already, I won’t be presenting this brief in 

the third person, nor am I going to quote much case law or statutory law.  I will support this appeal with 

100 percent rock-solid evidence—but someone must actually look at it and rule accordingly instead of 

ignoring it like the corrupt bankruptcy court and BAP have.  I won’t sugar-coat anything.  I will be calling 

a spade a spade.  I’ve been fighting the world’s largest crime syndicate (hereinafter “syndicate”) for over 

thirty years—nearly twenty years in just the instant case alone in which I’ve illegally been denied a jury 

trial twice.
2
 

I am the nicest guy in the world—until the “justice” system tries to jam injustice down my throat, 

which is pretty much all the time.  Then I’m not so nice anymore, as the syndicate here in California and 

the criminals responsible for trying to do so are finding out—the hard way.  If you’ve managed to piss me 

off, you’ve done an excellent job because I have an extremely long fuse, but when it goes, it goes.  I used 

                                                                                                               

2
 Tom Scott, Our American Injustice System: A Toxic Waste Dump Also Known as the World’s Largest Crime 

Syndicate (United States: Smart Play Publishing, 2022), proof that it is the world’s largest, p. 1-5, www.oais.us. 
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to sponsor two children in foreign countries when I could afford it before my current financial crisis.  It’s 

probably a safe bet to say that nobody else involved with my bankruptcy and its progeny—members of 

the syndicate or otherwise—can make the same statement.  I never say “no” to a friend.  And I always try 

to help those in need.  But I won’t stand for corruption or injustice!  I have zero tolerance for 

either.....maybe less. 

I was involved in a traffic matter in Rhode Island whereby the syndicate essentially said, “Yes, 

we know you’re right, but we’re not going to pay you anyway.”  The relevant law coincidentally changed 

a year later making what I did now a citable offense.  Not long afterward in the People’s Republic of 

Massachusetts, the syndicate told me in the case that gave birth to this bankruptcy, “There’s no fraud, no 

corruption,” then they go ahead and appoint their friend Michaud to the bench.  Shortly thereafter, one of 

the state felony statutes changed so that a major crime he committed was no longer considered a 

crime.....another coincidence.  The preceding is all clearly proved at the first link provided herein.  After I 

told Adler that I would be going after her properties, they were put on the market the very next day.  

Amazing, it’s another pure coincidence!  Moving real property out of harm’s way, of which I’ve been 

falsely accused, is exactly what this hypocrite-criminal did.  The irony of it all is that the condominiums 

are located at 666 Upas Street.  See exhibits “B” and “C.”  As the saying on the street goes, one can’t 

make this sh!t up. 

Before the pandemic, I was speaking to audiences and informing them how truly dangerous and 

corrupt the syndicate has become and how people can protect themselves from it by reading a book I 

coauthored, which is the only known work of its kind.  As such, I am now a target for all corrupt 

members of the syndicate—and there are many—who want to eliminate me and my work.  My book is 

welcome relief to everyone who respects the Framers and the U.S. Constitution and who wants to be 

protected from the syndicate, but it’s shunned by corrupt and/or criminal members of the syndicate.  As 

fully expected, the criminals at the DOI have railed against it in other filings, but more than 95 percent of 
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good, ordinary Americans have rated it five stars.
3
  “A patriot must always be ready to defend his country 

against his government.”
4
  This is precisely why I wrote my book—to defend the laypeople of this nation 

from the immensely corrupt legal system. 

My experiences aren’t unique.  The blessing of grave injustices happens every day across the 

country.  Proceedings in court are treated like some sort of perverse game with people’s lives and 

property.  And then the judiciary wonders why about three-quarters of Americans—the highest 

percentage of all time—hate it and say it’s corrupt, and in one poll, this once great nation was 13th most 

corrupt worldwide.
5
 
6
  The decay has gotten worse over the past several decades, accelerating the whole 

time as it still is today. 

Decades ago, an unconnected litigant would have to go through ten judges before getting one bad 

one.  Now, that same person must go through ten judges to get one good one.  I’m on at least my 19th or 

20th judge since the real inception of this case, dating back to 2005 in the People’s Republic of 

Massachusetts where this matter truly began, and long overdue for that one good one like Richard Posner 

or Andrew Napolitano.  Sadly, the Framers are rolling in their graves.  Justice has become nearly extinct 

in the syndicate: “In fact, it is more likely that when any right and just party prevails in court, this does 

not happen because of the system but in spite of it.”
7 

If someone on the street were to commit a crime against me by stealing $100 from my wallet, I 

could handle that.  I wouldn’t like it, but I could handle it.  What I absolutely can’t handle is when 

members of the syndicate commit crimes against me, which happens orders of magnitude more often.  

The fact that the crimes aren’t only denied by the perpetrators—but remain uninvestigated and go 

unpunished by the syndicate itself—pushes me.....well.....beyond.....furious!  In fact, the level of 

criminality within the entire syndicate, and particularly in this case, is off the scale. 

                                                                                                               

3
 www.amazon.com/Stack-Legal-Odds-Your-Favor/dp/0996592903#customerReviews 

4
 Edward Abbey, A Voice Crying in the Wilderness (Vox Clamantis in Deserto): Notes from a Secret Journal 

(United States: St. Martin’s Press, 1989), p. 19. 
5
 www.pewresearch.org/politics/2021/05/17/public-trust-in-government-1958-2021/ 

6
 news.gallup.com/poll/185759/widespread-government-corruption.aspx 

7
 Sara Naheedy, Tom Scott, Stack the Legal Odds in Your Favor (United States: Smart Play Publishing, 

2016), p. 12. 
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Unlike perhaps every single brief submitted in U.S. history, I am not going to say that the court 

“erred” because it didn’t.  What the culprits unabashedly and willfully did was premeditated, repulsive, 

and criminal, and it’s reprehensible.  When improper or illegal things are done more than once or twice in 

a case, those offenses cannot be considered accidental.  If all instances of misconduct in the underlying 

cases care counted, the total easily exceeds 75, and perhaps even 100—and I can prove them all. 

I also find appalling the fact that there are different sets of rules and laws for different people and 

entities and that today’s court cases are just like the WWE.  The intent is to put on a good show for 

outside observers, but the outcomes are predetermined.  “It’s an eminence front; it’s a put on.”
8
  I knew 

my case would end up exactly where it is now as soon as I started communicating with the criminals at 

the DOI and experiencing Adler’s bias.  I needed no crystal ball for this.  Telling is the following quote: 

“Understand that anything is possible in the legal system, even the seemingly impossible, depending upon 

who is doing the prosecuting, judging, recording, sentencing, checking, or filing—it just depends on what 

rules or laws are interpreted, twisted, broken, or created out of thin air at the time.”
9
  The misconduct of 

and crimes committed by government personnel in the instant case is inexcusable and is punishable. 

The Bankruptcy Associated with This Appeal Is Strictly the Syndicate’s Fault 

This brief was written by someone who hates to write.  But I hate corruption, crime, and injustice even 

more—particularly within the syndicate.  The bankruptcy associated with this appeal is purely the 

syndicate’s fault.  A fraudulent judgment was issued against me in another state.  The syndicate turned a 

blind eye to law, facts, and justice while participating in fraud and crimes in the matter precipitating that 

judgment similarly to the way it has done in the instant case thus far.  Supporting evidence regarding the 

judgment in the original case and related events is available at http://www.stloiyf.com/evidence/letter.htm 

as already provided herein.  It’s plainly apparent that “with governments, you don’t always get a fair word 

                                                                                                               

8
 Pete Townshend, The Who, It’s Hard, Eminence Front (United Kingdom: Polydor Records Ltd., 1982). 

9
 Sara Naheedy, Tom Scott, Stack the Legal Odds in Your Favor (United States: Smart Play Publishing, 

2016), p. 151. 
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or a fair fight.”
10

  And “It’s sad that governments are chiefed by the double tongues.”
11

 

I only listed one “creditor” in my schedules—really a criminal entity associated with actors 

within the syndicate in the state where that entity obtained the aforementioned judgment.  Because 

nobody within government lifted a toxic finger to remedy this travesty of justice despite the complaints I 

filed with many oversight boards, the DOI, and the Federal Bureau of Iniquity, I was forced to file chapter 

7 in order to protect property I no longer own but which provided about 40 percent of my income.  To add 

insult to injury, I was coerced to pay a $335 filing fee even as an indigent filer.  This is just as outrageous 

as incarcerating an innocent person for decades, and then after exonerating and releasing him, not only 

failing to justly compensate him but instead unjustly billing him for the expenses incurred during the 

years he was incarcerated. 

Glimmer of Hope That There Is Some Integrity Left in the Syndicate 

My coauthor keeps telling me that the syndicate isn’t going to rule in my favor.  I always respond that 

there has to be some renegade judge yet remaining out there—at least one—who actually respects and 

follows the law and the U.S. Constitution.  The syndicate can’t be composed entirely of criminals.  It’s 

virtually impossible.  Another author I know refers to the despicable, corrupt judges who ruin people’s 

lives as “cockroaches.”  I told him that is offensive.  After all, what did the insects with the same name do 

that is bad enough to warrant being associated with such contemptible judges?  This appeal aims to prove 

my conjecture: judges with integrity still exist in America. 

BIAS 

I know that many litigants probably say, “The judge is biased.”  Although most are probably correct, I 

also know the court will say, “Everybody says that.”  However, such a statement is presumptuous.  It’s 

like dismissing statements from people serving time in prison who shout, “I am innocent!”  Yes, many are 

                                                                                                               

10
 Josey Wales (Clint Eastwood), The Outlaw Josey Wales (United States: The Malpaso Company/Warner Bros., 

1976) 
11

 Ten Bears (Will Sampson), The Outlaw Josey Wales (United States: The Malpaso Company/Warner Bros., 1976) 
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guilty, but some actually are innocent—50,000-plus to be exact.
12

  To prove my claim, the biggest 

indicators of bias in the matter will be examined below.  Other indicators—not as large but just as 

telling—are also presented.  Not only has Adler been biased since the inception of this case, but she’s 

been careless enough to let it shine through.  She is so incredibly biased that she couldn’t even put aside 

her prejudice to rule impartially on a motion to recuse.  The following subsections illustrate her extreme 

bias. 

Bias in Adler’s Statements 

During the hearing on September 24, 2020, Adler asked me, “Are you a lawyer?” Then she said to me, 

“You have a very elite understanding of the law.”  See transcript “1.”  However, she’s ruled against me 

every single time I’ve faced opposition.  So, either I’m an idiot, and she was wrong with her assessment 

of my intellect, or she’s clearly and invariably ruled against me even though I’m right.  It can’t be both 

ways. 

One biased statement was made during the hearing on December 17, 2020.  When the discussion 

concerned affidavits and Appellee was complaining that I hadn’t provided contact information for the 

respective parties, Adler said, “I find that hard to believe,” after I stated I didn’t have the requested 

contact information.  The judge said this without knowing any details about the affidavits whatsoever: 

that they were sent clear across the country, that they were signed by people I don’t know well, and that 

they were provided by a third party.  Also during this conference, Adler tried to steamroll the hearing on 

my motion to alter judgment.  She only was ready and willing to address (and allow) the motion to 

compel by Mihelic and was perfectly happy to skip right over my motion and would have done so if I had 

not immediately interrupted the calling of the next matter. 

A biased statement was made during another telephonic hearing.  Although I can’t find it in the 

transcripts, I find it in my notes.  Adler asked Mihelic, “What will you need to be ready for trial?”  She 

didn’t ask me the same question.  Apparently, it’s only important that the DOI has whatever it deems 
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 Sara Naheedy, Tom Scott, Stack the Legal Odds in Your Favor (United States: Smart Play Publishing, 

2016), p. 7. 
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necessary to be ready for trial and win the case—not that justice is served.  This is disturbing. 

During the June 24, 2021, hearing, after the lies in the court record and by Mihelic had been 

accepted as true—or just simply accepted—and after Mihelic stated that I filed a motion to dismiss, Adler 

made the biased statement, “I see you’ve been busy writing another motion.”  See transcript “4.”  The 

translation is: “I’m not going to read this one either; it’s just another nuisance that we have to deal with.”  

The judge has made many such overtly prejudiced comments.  These are just a few examples. 

Bias in Adler’s Actions 

Adler tried to block me from filing my chapter 7 petition at the outset.  She wouldn’t allow me to proceed 

in forma pauperis and made me pay the filing fee.  See doc. no. 20.  However, since the date on which I 

filed my petition, I requested a fee waiver nine other times, and all nine have been granted—two of which 

were for the related “financial management courses” that are required as part of the bankruptcy process.  

In all instances, nearly identical financial information was provided.  In fact, 28 U.S. Code § 1930(f)(1) 

clearly states that “the bankruptcy court may waive the filing fee in a case under chapter 7 of title 11 for 

an individual if the court determines that such individual has income less than 150 percent of the income 

official poverty line.”  My income is well below that.  Furthermore, I find it more than questionable—

akin to the “coincidences” described earlier—that she was the only one to deny me a waiver.  The odds of 

all these things truly being coincidental are about the same as a snowball surviving in hell for a year.  I 

asked her bluntly during a telephonic hearing if Michaud called her.  She said, “I don’t even know who 

that is.”  See transcript “3.”  Her response is highly suspect, and I’m convinced that she is lying and he did 

in fact call her. 

Bias is crystal clear in the tentative ruling of October 13, 2020, part of which reads as follows: 

“Although it is premised, in part, on Defendant’s [alleged] transfers of real property to avoid and frustrate 

creditors, it is not an action requesting recovery of a fraudulent transfer.”  See doc. no. 37 and exhibit 

“D.”  When parties to actions don’t use terms such as “alleged” when accusations are made but not yet 

proved in court, it not only flies in the face of conformance with due process, but it’s constitutionally 
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offensive—and even more so when made by a so-called judge. 

I filed multiple much needed complaints against Mihelic with the Office of “Professional” 

Responsibility, the Office of the Inspector General, and other entities.  Mihelic should be reprimanded, 

disbarred, or, more appropriately, terminated and prosecuted criminally, but this may not happen before 

the instant case is correctly adjudicated in the courts and the damage is done.  In fact, it may not happen at 

all considering the way the syndicate circles the wagons to protect its own.  I informed the bankruptcy 

court many, many times of the plenitude and severity of Mihelic’s misconduct (See exhibits “E” to “G”), 

which, along with Adler’s misconduct, is summarized at the following link: 

http://www.stloiyf.com/complaint/complaint.htm.  I did so verbally during phone conferences as well, 

one being on January 14, 2021.  The judge has refused to investigate and punish Mihelic as clearly 

mandated by Canon 3(B)(6) of the Code of Conduct for United States Judges: 

A judge should take appropriate action upon receipt of reliable information indicating the 

likelihood that a judge’s conduct contravened this Code, that a judicial employee’s conduct 

contravened the Code of Conduct for Judicial Employees, or that a lawyer violated applicable 

rules of professional conduct (emphasis added). 

“[A]ppropriate action” doesn’t mean looking the other way.  Rewarding such individuals for their 

crimes and other misconduct is also not “appropriate action.”  As much as judges don’t want to follow 

rules of procedure or the law when said rules or laws negatively impact them or their friends, they are 

nonetheless obligated to do so.  Adler’s inaction is nothing less than shocking, if not criminal.  Ex parte 

motions and communication and other actions have been on the cusp of ethical violations.  The U.S. 

Constitution isn’t meant for those in power to use it as a doormat, and absolutely nothing on this planet 

infuriates me more when they do! 

After I repeatedly reported Mihelic’s misconduct and criminal acts to Adler, she finally did 

something.  Instead of following Canon 3(B)(6), she chastised me for bringing it all to light.  See doc. no. 

191 and exhibit “H.”  The evidence I’ve presented in the case thus far, including this appeal and the court 

record, reveals Adler’s cavalier attitude towards misconduct and criminal acts—offenses that are perfectly 

fine if the offender is on the “right team.”  She simply doesn’t want to hear about any wrongdoing by 
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government personnel, although she is quick to falsely charge me every chance she gets.  This alone is 

more than sufficient to sanction the judge and vacate all her rulings.  Perhaps best illustrating Adler’s 

detestable attitude towards me is my favorite quote by Doctor Ron Paul: “Truth is treason in the empire of 

lies.”
13

 

A judge is supposed to uphold the law, not be its biggest violator.  Adler didn’t followed rules of 

procedure, the law, and the U.S. Constitution.  She allowed Appellee’s motion to quash my subpoena to 

produce phone records strictly comprised of “number and duration of each call”—and nothing else—

which is not anything that could be even remotely misconstrued as “attorney work product” or 

information that is protected by “attorney-client privileges.”  The reason I specifically asked for general 

information in the subpoena is that I knew private information could legitimately be blocked.  See doc. 

no. 31 and exhibits “I” and “J.” 

Adler had no legal authority to block me from receiving a mere listing of phone numbers and 

duration of calls.  The fact that such records exist isn’t protected, which she knows full well, and 

protection claimed by Appellee isn’t “warranted by existing law” as required by Rule 11(b)(2) of the 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.  From U.S. v. Jackson, Criminal Action No. 07-0035 (RWR) (D.D.C. 

Oct. 30, 2007): “The existence of a communication between a client and her attorney is not privileged, 

even if the content of that communication would otherwise be protected.  Matter of Walsh, 623 F.2d 489, 

494 (7th Cir. 1980).  See also United States v. Pipkins, 528 F.2d 559, 562 (5th Cir. 1976) (‘The attorney-

client privilege prohibits the disclosure of the substance of communications made in confidence by a 

client to his attorney for the purpose of obtaining legal advice.’) (emphasis added); United States v. 

Kendrick, 331 F.2d 110, 113 (4th Cir. 1964) (‘It is the substance of the communications which is 

protected, however, not the fact that there have been communications.’)” (emphasis original). 

Alder also allowed Appellee’s motion to illegally deny my right to a jury trial even though all 

supporting statutory and case law says otherwise.  In fact, she denied my right to any trial whatsoever 

because of the fraudulent judgment by default she issued on August 4, 2021.  See doc. nos. 48 and 228. 
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Adler also granted every known oral motion from Mihelic but denied every single verbal motion 

and opposition from me—and there are many.  All my motions that the court record states were 

“unopposed” were not.  Adler took her time to allow me to file electronically.  At first, I didn’t submit 

written oppositions because I could not afford the added expense of printing and filing by U.S. mail, but I 

tried to state my positions verbally.  She prevented it.  But she sure allowed Mihelic to present oral 

motions on several occasions.  See exhibit “K” for just two examples.  Finally, Mihelic has asked for at 

least six or seven extensions thus far, which is beyond outrageous—and even more outrageous for the 

corrupt court to grant them all. 

Adler didn’t abide by stare decisis regarding appointment of counsel.  See doc. no. 134.  The U.S. 

Supreme Court opined in Maness v. Meyers, 419 U.S. 449 (1975), “This Court has always broadly 

construed [Fifth Amendment privilege against self-incrimination] protection to assure that an individual is 

not compelled to produce evidence which later may be used against him as an accused in a criminal 

action.”  Continuing in its opinion, it said that “counsel must be appointed for any indigent witness, 

whether or not he is a party, in any proceeding in which his testimony can be compelled.....Unless counsel 

is appointed, these indigents will be deprived, just as surely as Maness’ client would have been had he not 

been advised by Maness, of the opportunity to decide whether to assert their constitutional privilege” 

(emphasis added).  Bear in mind that the decision was  unanimous. 

During the phone conference of January 14, 2021, Adler upheld “her” tentative order issued on 

January 12, 2021, to compel discovery, including deposing me.  See doc. no. 78.  After I informed her 

of 28 U.S. Code § 1915(e)(1) by quoting it directly and of the unanimous Maness ruling, she failed to 

acknowledge that the law allows for appointed counsel outside of criminal proceedings and actually 

mandates it in the instant case.  She said that I would only be represented by appointed counsel if “the 

U.S. trustee finds that [I] made false statements” related to these civil proceedings and I am charged 

criminally.  Notice that she mentioned nothing regarding the statements being alleged until proved in 

court and thus completely disregarded due process.  The fact that she deemed the word of Mihelic—

someone who has proved herself to be a compulsive liar by lying well over thirty-five times and perjuring 
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herself on multiple occasions—to be sufficient to substantiate the veracity of such statements is nothing 

less than horrifying.  See doc. no. 192 and http://www.stloiyf.com/complaint/complaint.htm for a 

summary of Mihelic’s and Adler’s known lies, misconduct, and crimes. 

This aside, the intent of Maness is preventative, not reparative, so Adler’s “reasoning” is 

wrong.  That court stated, “Although the proceeding in which he is called is not criminal, it is established 

that a witness may not be required to answer a question if there is some rational basis for believing that it 

will incriminate him, at least without at that time being assured that neither it nor its fruits may be used 

against him.”  In the same conference on January 14, 2021, Adler asked, “Have you tried legal aid?”  I 

replied, “Yes, but nobody will touch it.  There’s too much corruption.”  Instead of replying, “Oh my, well, 

we will investigate that, and, yes, I will abide by the law and Constitution and appoint you counsel,” she 

said, “Well, I can’t help you.” 

Adler failed to read anything I submitted to the court.  During the hearing on December 17, 2020, 

she didn’t respond to me when I firmly asked, “Are you reading anything I send you?”  Instead, I was met 

with dead silence.  Her failure to answer was undeniably a definitive answer.  Further evidence backing 

my claim can be found in her statement during the hearing on June 24, 2021, “I see you’ve been busy 

writing another motion,” as mentioned in the Bias in Adler’s Statements subsection above.  With only one 

side of the “story”—really a tall tale—from the DOI, there is absolutely no way that justice can be served. 

This subsection wouldn’t be complete without discussing highly unlikely mathematical odds.  

Perhaps the most striking evidence against everything transpiring in this case and its ancestors according 

to law is the fact that the syndicate has ruled against me fifty-three consecutive times whenever I’ve been 

opposed.  Odds of this purely happening by chance and without bias or external influence are 1 in 

9,007,199,254,740,992, or less than 0.0000000000000001 percent.  The chance of hitting Powerball is 

30,846,573 times greater since the odds of winning that particular lottery are only 1 in 292,201,338.  

From the syndicate’s own website, discharges are given in “more than 99 percent of chapter 7 cases.”
14

  

Yet somehow, and also against the preceding astronomical odds, the discharge of my fraudulently created 
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debt was denied.  And outside observers are supposed to believe that there was a planetary alignment, not 

just in this solar system, but in every other one in the known universe.....at the same time. 

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Regarding every telephonic hearing associated with my bankruptcy in which I’ve ever participated, 

without exception, the judge asked someone else to write the court order whenever one was to be created.  

In my case, it’s always Mihelic whom she asked.  She let the DOI be judge, jury, and executioner 

by having its personnel write the court’s orders.  See, for example, doc. no. 197 and exhibit “M.”  It’s bad 

enough having an opposing party write a court order since doing so is clearly a conflict of interest, but 

having a government attorney who I’ve proved has lied well in excess of thirty-five times and perjured 

herself several times in just this single bankruptcy matter do it is about as massive a conflict of interest 

imaginable anywhere on Earth.  In everything Mihelic has written—documents for Appellee and court 

orders—she’s consistently omitted things that are true and added things that are false.  Basically, a 

criminal created the court record, and another one blessed it.  Then the first one pointed to the court 

record that she created to support even more lies, and the cycle repeats.  The court “record” reflects the 

narrative of Mihelic and Adler, not the facts and evidence in the case.  It’s the way it is because facts and 

evidence have been ignored.  If this isn’t jaw-dropping to whoever reads this, then I don’t know what the 

hell is. 

Mihelic and Adler are both members of the following organizations.  See Exhibits “N” through 

“R.”  It’s virtually impossible that they’ve never met at any respective social functions and don’t have 

some sort of interpersonal relationship.  This can certainly be viewed as a conflict of interest.  The list 

isn’t intended to be exhaustive: 

 Lawyers Club of San Diego 

 San Diego Bankruptcy Forum 

 National Conference of Bankruptcy Judges 

 International Women’s Insolvency and Restructuring Confederation 

Not surprisingly, neither Adler nor Mihelic are members of the American Constitution Society or 

Christian Legal Society.  It may not seem like a big deal, but, like a puzzle, all pieces connected together 
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reveal much more than a single piece by itself. 

RULINGS AND ORDERS 

Several aspects of this case have been contrived, and much, if not all, of the court record reflects 

wrongdoing as shown in my MOTION FOR JUDICIAL NOTICE filed with this brief.  I’ve been 

sanctioned and threatened with more sanctions.  See doc. no. 174 and exhibit “S.”  The threat of 

additional sanctions and chastisement came as a result of me bringing to light the crime and corruption in 

the case.  See doc. no. 191 and exhibit “H.”  That fact is itself more than sufficient to vacate all of Adler’s 

orders against me.  I was also threatened with sanctions for contriving evidence, which I didn’t do, but 

Mihelic certainly did, which I’ve proved herein and on web pages at the previous hyperlinks.  See doc. 

no. 174 and exhibits “S” and “U.”  Adler dishonorably eschewed her responsibilities to uphold the law 

and punish members of the DOI for their misconduct according to Canon 3(B)(6) of the Code of Conduct 

for United States Judges.  I won’t do or abide by things that are wrong.  Court orders must be written 

according to law and be morally right.  If the syndicate decides to start actually following the law and 

sanction Appellee and Adler as it should so that I am paid instead, it would be the right thing to do, and I 

would abide by that. 

 Regarding depositions, orders have been disregarded and lies have been spewed.  Against my 

wishes and Chief Judge Order number 18-A, the first deposition was scheduled for February 12, 2021.  

Appellee claims, “The [d]efendant failed to cooperate with the [A]UST in scheduling his deposition.”  

See exhibit “T.”  This is a lie on top of a lie.  I had offered several options, but they were not acceptable 

to Appellee.  See exhibit “U.”  In an email on November 24, 2020, Mihelic said, “The depositions are 

required to be conducted during regular business hours,” but this is yet another lie.  See exhibit “V.”  In 

fact, rules of procedure say the exact opposite—that depositions can take place “at any time.”  See F. R. 

B. P. 7029, which is F. R. Civ. P. 29.  After Mihelic lied about requirements regarding the times 

depositions can be taken and I asked her to “provide the rule that states depositions must be held during 

the times you state and i will abide by that,” she didn’t respond.  See exhibit “V.”  That’s because no such 
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rule exists.  Considering the global pandemic, she was foolish to schedule it in person.  It was scheduled 

in direct violation of Chief Judge Order number 18-A, which stated that in-person events were 

suspended.  See exhibit “W.”  Mihelic lied once again on the record by saying that “[d]espite numerous 

requests from the [A]UST that [I] identify dates where [I] could start the deposition during normal 

business hours, [I] refused to do so.”  See doc. no. 189 and exhibits “U” and “X.” 

I was also fully prepared to attend the second deposition virtually as per court order of April 2, 

2021, and scheduled for April 19, 2021, which Mihelic declined to conduct, despite the order, “The 

deposition to be held virtual in the [c]ourt [r]eporter office on 4/19/21 at 10:00 a.m.,” mandating it 

(emphasis added).  See doc. no. 141 and exhibit “Y.”  After several emails beginning on April 16, 2021, 

some of which Mihelic failed to answer, I abandoned the remote/virtual deposition on April 19, 2021, 

after waiting patiently at my computer until noon for instructions about how to participate.  See doc. no. 

154 and exhibits “Z” and “AA.”  My questions, “why not just have it remote like the 341 meetings?” and 

“why do you want me there?”, were reasonable and should have been answered according to court order: 

“By 5/1/21 Mr. Oliver may ask any reasonable request in good faith.”  See doc. no. 141 and exhibit “Y.”  

Mihelic failed to answer my questions and thus violated this order for at least the second time.  She also 

lied multiple times in just the one relevant email thread.  For instance, she said, “There are two orders 

compelling your attendance at the court reporter’s office for your deposition” (emphasis added).  See 

exhibit “AA.”  I read the second court order multiple times.  It makes no mention of me—or Appellee for 

that matter—being physically there.  See doc. no. 141 and exhibit “Y.” 

After sending emails to Mihelic that went unanswered and seeing that they were being read all 

across the nation, I had legitimate reason to believe it was a set-up and was in fear for my life to attend in 

person; therefore, I asked for credentials to sign in and attend remotely.  She refused to provide them, 

which reinforced my fear.  See doc. no. 154 and exhibits “Z” and “AA.”  I told her I didn’t want to 

“inconvenience my friend,” which was true.  I didn’t tell her that I also knew my safety was in jeopardy 

because I would have had to reveal then that I was using email tracking software and wouldn’t be able to 

gather even more evidence of the diabolical activities being perpetrated by Mihelic and other system 
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members.  Now, I have enough fuel in the tank not only to defend myself in the bankruptcy but also to 

crucify these criminals in my action against them. 

Additionally, I sent the message to one addressee in San Diego, California.  Why was it read 

nationwide?  See exhibit “AA.”  Considering what I’ve repeatedly seen and been through with the 

syndicate—records being manipulated, evidence being hidden and manufactured, laws being changed 

because of me, innumerable crimes being committed against me by its members, and more—I’ve learned 

to trust nobody who is part of it or associated with it, not even whoever reads this brief.  I strongly suspect 

that the gap in Mihelic’s responses to my messages was so that she could coordinate with other criminals 

on the East coast regarding their secret plans. 

Note that in contrast to the first order, the second order was written such that nobody was 

required to appear at the reporter’s office.  See exhibits “Y” and “BB.”  Actually, there was no legitimate 

reason I should have had to attend physically either deposition.  They didn’t write the second order the 

way they intended it to be written—but this isn’t my fault.  However, they will continue to pretend that 

they did.  Moreover, I didn’t know until Mihelic finally responded to my email on April 19, 2021, that she 

wouldn’t be physically present at the reporter’s office herself, which increased my fear almost to the 

redline.  Her proven track record of lies, perjury, and general untrustworthiness put me on extra-high 

alert.  All the foregoing were major red flags indicating that if I attended in person, I might hang myself 

from a doorknob or shoot myself twice in the back of the head. 

Regarding other discovery, I responded to legitimate requests.  Appellee complained that I 

“[p]rovided [] [r]esponses to the [r]equests for [p]roduction of [d]ocuments almost two weeks late and 

asserted unsubstantiated and meritless objections.”  See exhibit “X.”  While her requests may have been 

dated October 26, 2020, I didn’t receive them until many days later, and I responded timely.  My 

objections were not “unsubstantiated and meritless.”  Some of my objections were based on a one-year 

look-back limit as defined by the law under which she brought her complaint.  See 11 U.S. Code § 727.  

She neglects to mention that some of her responses to my requests were delivered to me more than four 

months late.  For instance, I asked for electronic copies of 341 meeting minutes on November 7, 2020.  I 
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received them on April 16, 2021, after the court order entered on April 2, 2021, mandating that I receive 

them.  See exhibits “Y” and “DD” and doc. no. 141.  In my response to her requests, I replied several 

times “No such ‘Complaint’ or ‘Answer’ exists” because she stated in her definitions that “‘Complaint’ 

refers to the Complaint Objecting to the Debtor’s Discharge Pursuant to 11 U.S.C. § 727(c);” however, 

she brought the complaint under § 727(a)(4)(A) and (a)(2)(A)—not 727(c)—as can plainly be seen from 

its title.  Therefore, her definition of “complaint” and “answer” were invalid.  See doc. no. 1 and exhibits 

“EE” and “FF.”  For many items, she specified no date or included the wording “at any time.”  See 

exhibit “EE.”  To these, I correctly responded with “too overbroad and vague.”  Even for an honest 

attorney such work would be sloppy.  If she had asked why I gave the responses that I did, I would have 

informed her.  She did not. 

Regarding payment of sanctions, if anyone hasn’t noticed, I’ve filed for bankruptcy.  Although I 

was sanctioned $2,199 and $3,582.55, I wouldn’t oblige even if I had the money.  I am not going to pay 

someone to commit crimes against me no matter what other criminal comes down from Mount Olympus 

and says that I must.  It’s simply not going to happen in this universe.  That ended nearly two decades 

ago.  Contrarily, the syndicate already bleeds the taxpayer so that it can commit crimes against everyday 

litigants, and it wants me to pay more on top of that.  Are you kidding me?!  But if I had done something 

verily sanctionable and had the funds, I would pay.  Since neither is true, the DOI won’t be getting a 

penny from me, other than what it already steals—along with the rest of the syndicate—through taxes.  

All sanctions and threats of sanctions have been based on a fraudulent court record and the complete 

disregard of facts, evidence, law, and justice.  Appellee has argued and will likely continue to argue 

stupidly that I was ordered to pay sanctions but haven’t.  She’s stated, “Defendant Repeatedly Violates 

This Court’s Orders.”  This is like making the nonsensical statement: “Swimmer Drowns Because He 

Can’t Swim with Anchor Tied around His Neck.”  One isn’t helped out of bankruptcy by further adding 

to his burden.  My income is now negative $497 per month, thanks to criminals in the syndicate 

nationwide.  To sanction me for following the rules and laws as I have and not sanction Criminals for not 

following them borders on pure evil.  Satan has a special spot reserved in hell for Mihelic and others. 
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ADDITIONAL LIES, CRIMES, GENERAL MISCONDUCT, AND MORE 

At least three of Adler’s actions have been criminal, and a plenitude have been unjudicial and are also 

discussed at http://www.stloiyf.com/complaint/complaint.htm#adler_misconduct.  Adler disregarded law, 

rules of procedure, and the Code of Conduct for U.S. Judges; wiped her feet on the U.S. Constitution; and 

permitted Mihelic and other members of the DOI to lie and commit perjury and other crimes unrestrained.  

“We’ve got to judge the judge.”
15

 

Adler lied to me during one of the telephonic conferences when she said, “This isn’t a criminal 

trial.  You don’t get a lawyer appointed to you,” or something very similar.  However, 28 U.S. Code § 

1915(e)(1) and Maness v. Meyers  say otherwise as previously proved. 

Adler also lied to me in the March 18, 2021, telephonic conference when she said, “This is the 

first I am hearing about any wrongdoing by Ms. Mihelic.”  Her statement is false.  I informed her of 

wrongdoing during the hearing of January 14, 2021; in my petition for writ of mandamus filed on January 

20, 2021; in my OBJECTION TO “PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES TRUSTEE’S SECOND MOTION 

TO EXTEND DISCOVERY DEADLINES AS TO THE UNITED STATES TRUSTEE” dated March 3, 

2021; in my REPLY TO “UNITED STATES TRUSTEE’S RESPONSE TO MOTION TO COMPEL 

DISCLOSURE AND FOR SANCTIONS, AND REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES” 

dated March 4, 2021; and in many other related documents.  See exhibits “E” to “G.”  On the outside 

chance that she misunderstood me or didn’t hear me at the January 14, 2021, conference, then it 100 

percent proves she read nothing I submitted. 

Adler lied again in “her” tentative ruling on March 29, 2021.  She said that “evidence he attaches 

in support (an email chain) has been altered to make it appear that he offered deposition times beginning 

at 10:00 AM.”  See doc. no. 174 and exhibit “S.”  Once again, this is entirely untrue.  I have the email 

sitting in my sent mail folder that proves it.  I did in fact offer times at 10am.  See exhibit “U.”  As I’ve 

done herein, I copied and pasted evidence from two emails onto one page with regard to the “[A]UST’s 

status report [ECF 74]” to which Adler is referring—and which Mihelic previously submitted.  The DOI 
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falsely accused me yet again.  So, what we have here now is one criminal lying and the other swearing by 

it.  Adler has lied many other times, but only a few more examples are given in the supplemental 

appendix so as to keep this brief as short as possible. 

Adler has committed at least three known crimes: Misprision of Felony, Concealing and Covering 

up Records in Bankruptcy, and Bankruptcy Investigations.  Just as Mihelic was made fully aware of 

felonious acts committed by others prior to the bankruptcy, so was Adler.  I submitted an open letter to 

the court on November 16, 2020, informing her of such acts.  See exhibit “CC.”  As stated previously, I 

informed her many times verbally and in court papers of Mihelic’s mountain of lies and 

two known counts of perjury, upon which she failed to act (correctively).  Since she also concealed the 

felonies committed by others—who now include Mihelic—she violated criminal law 18 U.S. Code § 

4 too just as Michelic has and is an accessory after the fact.  The other two known crimes relate not only 

to the preceding but to all the records that reveal the true fraud and corruption in the underlying matter 

that gave rise to all this.  See exhibit “GG.”  Adler, as has Mihelic, has concealed—or, at the very least, 

tried to conceal—fraud and corruption by ignoring this evidence and has falsified and/or made false 

entries in records and documents.  See doc. nos. 174 and 191 and exhibits “H,” “S,” and “U” for just two 

examples.  Thus, she’s also broken criminal laws 18 U.S. Code § 1519 and § 3057. 

Just a single crime is needed to establish that someone is a criminal even though I’ve proved 

three.  Where there is smoke, there is fire.  Despite the syndicate choosing not to police itself by 

prosecuting its members doesn’t mean such members aren’t criminals; it means they are well-connected 

and on the “right team.”  If they’ve broken constitutionally sound criminal laws, they are criminals.  I 

have the evidence, and it’s rock-solid. 

Mihelic repeatedly committed perjury.  Once was during discovery when I asked her to provide 

specific records of communication to and from attorneys and others in certain states.  One person in 

particular was Attorney Douglas H. Smith.  In addition to objecting, she clearly stated “no such 

documents exist” in her response to request number 11, which contradicts the evidence she inadvertently 

provided and that was buried in more than 500 pages of photocopied email transmissions.  Her statement 
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also contradicts evidence provided by Attorney Nelson Brinckerhoff, an attorney in another related matter 

who stated, “I talked with the Rhode Island lawyer enforcing the Massachusetts judgment [Attorney 

Douglas H. Smith] and he informed me that Mr. Oliver had allegedly threatened the US trustee in 

bankruptcy in California and that he faces potential fraud and other criminal charges pursuant to his 

bankruptcy filing.”  See exhibits “HH” to “LL.” 

Brinckerhoff’s statement is further evidence that Attorney Douglas H. Smith communicated with 

Mihelic since Smith is the Rhode Island attorney who is trying to collect on a fraudulent foreign judgment 

issued by the People’s Republic of Massachusetts courts.  There is absolutely no way that Brinckerhoff 

would have gotten this misinformation without Smith communicating with Mihelic.  Since she denied the 

very existence of her communication with Smith, she would no doubt also deny that she communicated 

with Michaud and withhold that fact as she did in request number 10.  Furthermore, whoever wrote the 

court order of March 29, 2021, and worded it the way it’s worded—most likely Mihelic—in an attempt to 

cover up more of Mihelic’s crimes proves her guilt beyond any doubt.  See exhibit “L” and doc. no. 134. 

Another known time Mihelic perjured herself—and, in this instance, violated 18 U.S. Code § 

1621—was in her DECLARATION OF KRISTIN T. MIHELIC IN SUPPORT OF PLAINTIFF UNITED 

STATES TRUSTEE’S MOTION FOR SANCTIONS PURSUANT TO FED. R. BANKR. P. 7037(b)(2) 

AND 7037(d)(1) OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, FOR A FINDING OF CONTEMPT OF COURT 

PURSUANT TO FED. R. BANKR. P. 7037(b)(1) as I proved throughout my objection to the motion 

containing it.  See doc. nos. 179 and 186 and exhibit “MM.”  Irrefutable evidence can also be found at 

http://www.stloiyf.com/mihelic/complaint.htm. 

A relevant case regarding Mihelic’s lying and perjury is Ha v. Baumgart Cafe of Livingston, Civil 

Action No. 15-5530 (ES) (MAH), 8 (D.N.J. Apr. 26, 2018).  That court considered remedial actions when 

a lawyer’s behavior was “of an egregious nature, stamped by bad faith that is violative of recognized 

standards in the conduct of litigation.”  Mihelic’s misconduct has clearly attained that level in these 

proceedings.  Indeed, she may have set a new standard.  Of crucial note in Ha was part of the opinion: 

“Further, the misrepresentations were not made extemporaneously during a vigorously contested, fast-
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moving oral argument.  She made them in a letter that she drafted, had time to reflect on and review for 

accuracy, and submitted anyway” (emphasis strongly added).  All Mihelic’s lies, including perjury, that 

I’ve recorded thus far were made in written pleadings or correspondence, not verbally, so she obviously 

had malevolent intent to mislead. 

F. R. Civ. P. 37(a)(4) provides that “an evasive or incomplete disclosure, answer, or response 

must be treated as a failure to disclose, answer, or respond.”  Appellee has been evasive throughout these 

proceedings.  She didn’t want to comply with my subpoena for communication records.  She’s refused to 

investigate fraud in the underlying case in the People’s Republic of Massachusetts.  I told her about it in 

several 341 meetings, in the open letter to the court on November 16, 2020, and in an email on May 13, 

2020.  See exhibits “CC,” “GG,” and “NN.”  Rather than fight the fraud, she fought against me in order to 

perpetrate more fraud.  Appellee has provided incomplete information and misinformation during 

discovery—and committed perjury numerous times while doing so.  She’s responded to my requests late, 

and in one instance, several months late.  She’s wrongly argued—and will likely continue to argue—that 

I’ve acted improperly or illegally when in fact it’s she who has done so.  “There’s a tradition in politics 

[or the legal system], especially in recent history, that if you’re guilty of something, the best way to treat 

it is: don’t explain it, don’t deny it or anything else, just accuse the opposition of doing it.”
16

  Again, I’m 

asking this court just to look at the evidence.....and rule based upon it. 

 If I was the offender who did one-tenth of the things described above, I would have been put in 

“the chair” long ago.  I’ve run circles around Appellee and the entire DOI.  Everyone knows damn well 

that I’m right; however, nobody except me is willing to admit it.  An analogy is helpful.  Take the rings 

competition in Olympic gymnastics, for example.  One athlete grabs the rings and does an Iron Cross.  

The judges go out to lunch, come back, and he is still holding it sixty minutes later.  He dismounts with a 

quintuple flip never done before in the history of competition.  The judges give him a zero.  The second 

“athlete” tries to grab the rings and can’t even hold onto them.  He tries repeatedly but keeps falling.  He 

even cheats in clear view of the judges, but to no avail.  He simply cannot hold the rings.  The judges give 
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him a ten.  They ignore what they see and do whatever the hell they want.  This same thing has happened 

to me for well over fifteen years and continues today, and I’m sick and tired of it! 

 Perhaps the most astounding thing in all of jurisprudence is having a judge determine her own 

bias.  This is the very definition of insanity.  Bias would be best determined by an entity completely 

independent of the syndicate, but I am speaking idealistically.  Short of such an ideal, bias would be better 

determined by another judge, perhaps the chief judge, and certainly this court—an entity that is as 

physically and factually removed from the epicenter as possible.  This has happened in the past.  See, for 

example, United States v. Grinnell Corp., 384 U.S. 563, 582 n.13 (1966).  In fact, I would venture to say 

that the overwhelming majority of judges have failed to recuse when requested to do so by a litigant even 

for the most egregious acts.  In terms of percentages, the number is probably close to zero.  Judges could 

misinterpret stepping down from a case via the result of a litigant’s motion as admitting to having bias 

and otherwise—without said motion—intending to have seen the case to its conclusion, which I suspect 

has happened in the instant case.  Such misinterpretation wouldn’t exist in instances when a judge steps 

down sua sponte as she should when conditions fully warrant as they do here. 

This court should be made aware that when I make a claim in any court, I can prove 100 percent 

of everything that I put forth—not 75 percent, not 90 percent, not 99 percent—but 100 percent.  No other 

party associated with this matter will be able to prove 100 percent of their claims—not even close. 

Finally, Adler decided the adversarial matter despite any potential evidence to the contrary of 

what Appellee concocted.  I am in the fight of my life against an entity with a nearly infinite supply of 

money and power—the world’s largest crime syndicate whose employees in the instant matter make from 

$157,000 to $199,088 per year, or, at the upper end of that range, more than fourteen times what I earn, 

and are likely supporting another criminal network on the East Coast as all evidence now strongly 

indicates.  Keep in mind that I didn’t ask for any of this—I am the defendant in this bogus matter, which 

began all because a furtive phone call was made clear across the country. 
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EVEN IF APPELLEE’S ALLEGATIONS WERE TRUE, THEY ARE COMPLETELY 

IRRELEVANT 

Appellee’s allegations are false, which I’ve already proved.  Regardless, I could have blown up the entire 

universe, but because of the egregiousness of Mihelic’s misconduct and that of others, 

it.....would.....not.....matter.  Courts have ruled that litigants who don’t abide by the rules and law cannot 

proceed with their claims regardless of any validity to them.  In direct violation of the rules and law, 

Appellee has committed fraud, which I’ve also already proved.  From In Re Tri-Cran, Inc., 98 B.R. 

609 (Bankr. D. MA 1989), “In short, fraud on the court is fraud committed by the court, by an officer of 

the court, or by one who colludes with the court or an officer of the court; its result is a judgment obtained 

through the corruption of judicial officers, which corruption prevents the judicial machinery from 

performing its usual functions in an impartial manner.”  Also from this case, “Where a judgment is 

obtained by fraud perpetrated by an attorney acting as an officer of the court, the judgment may be 

attacked for fraud on the court.  ‘Since attorneys are officers of the court, their conduct, if dishonest, 

would constitute fraud on the court.’ H.K. Porter Co. v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co.” (emphasis added).  

It’s quite clear that Mihelic exemplifies dishonest, despicable, and criminal conduct, which meets (or 

exceeds) the requirements of the above authorities. 

In Dotson v. Bravo, 202 F.R.D. 559, 572 (N.D. Ill. 2001), aff’d, 321 F.3d 663 (7th Cir. 2003), a 

plaintiff was convicted of criminal offenses relating to his alleged discharge of a firearm at a police 

officer.  Id. at 665-66.  The defendant officer, Bravo, had testified against Plaintiff at his criminal trial that 

Plaintiff was the person who had shot at him.  However, audio recordings later surfaced which appeared 

to directly contradict the veracity of the defendant officer’s account.  Plaintiff was immediately released 

from prison as a result.  A lawsuit followed.  Plaintiff’s problems began, however, when it was revealed 

that he had misrepresented his identity in concert with the underlying criminal court proceedings.  Id. 

 Despite the fact that these misrepresentations had nothing whatsoever to do with the veracity of 

the plaintiff’s underlying version of the events forming the basis for his case (and despite the existence of 

evidence supporting the viability of his underlying claims against the defendant officer), the district court 
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dismissed Plaintiff’s suit as a sanction for dishonesty.  Id. at 572.  In affirming the dismissal of his claim 

as a result of the exposure of his prior dishonesty, the Seventh Circuit stated: 

Given the evidence that supported his acquittal from all criminal charges, we note that 

[Plaintiff’s] civil rights case may well have had some merit.  But, we cannot allow a plaintiff to so 

abuse the court system in order to avoid criminal justice, yet obtain civil reward.  If [Plaintiff] 

sought to expose the “truth” of what occurred on January 1, 1998, he should not have begun the 

lie that now leads to the dismissal of his case.  Id. at 669 (emphasis strongly added). 

Unquestionably, Appellee has no interest in exposing the truth.  Nearly everything she’s 

submitted via Mihelic (and now other attorneys) has been one incessant stream of lies.  In explaining, the 

court also stated that:  

[M]isconduct may exhibit such flagrant contempt for the court and its processes that to allow the 

offending party to continue to invoke the judicial mechanism for its own benefit would raise 

concerns about the integrity and credibility of the civil justice system that transcend the interests 

of the parties immediately before the court. 

Echoing these sentiments, countless courts—except the corrupt bankruptcy court and BAP—have 

addressed misconduct by penalizing the offender because it’s necessary to protect the integrity of the 

judicial process.  Just a few examples follow because there are too many to list.  Allen v. Chicago Transit 

Authority, 317 F.3d at 703 (“Perjury committed in the course of legal proceedings is a fraud on the court, 

and it is arguable that a litigant who defrauds the court should not be permitted to continue to press his 

case.”); Fuery v. City of Chicago, No. 07 C 5428, 2016 WL 5719442, at *2 (vacating jury verdict in favor 

of Plaintiff based upon Plaintiff’s trial misconduct and misrepresentation); Thomas v. Gen. Motors 

Acceptance Corp., 288 F.3d at 308 (court didn’t abuse discretion in dismissing suit where plaintiff 

knowingly filed false document); Brady v. United States, 877 F. Supp. 444, 453 (C.D. Ill. 1994) 

(“Litigants would infer they have everything to gain, and nothing to lose, if manufactured evidence is 

merely excluded while their lawsuit continues.  Litigants must know that the courts are not open to 

persons who would seek justice by fraudulent means.”) (emphasis added). 

But there are two facets of fraud to reconcile: one from government actors in this case and one 

from government and other actors in the case that spawned the original fraudulent judgment necessitating 

this bankruptcy.  With regard to the latter, the U.S. Supreme Court opined in Heiser v. Woodruff, 327 
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U.S. 726 (1946), “It is true that a bankruptcy court is also a court of equity.....and may exercise equity 

powers in bankruptcy proceedings to set aside fraudulent claims, including a fraudulent judgment where 

the issue of fraud has not been previously adjudicated” (emphasis added).  In this same case, the Court of 

Appeals for the Tenth Circuit “held that the court of bankruptcy could go behind the prior adjudications 

of the validity of the judgment and decide for itself the questions previously litigated and decided, 

whether the cause of action on which the judgment was entered was meritorious, and whether the claim in 

bankruptcy should be r[e]jected because [it was] based on a judgment procured by claimant’s fraud.”  

Moreover, the trustee actually helped the defendant there and rightly so!  “The issue whether there was 

perjured testimony of value, [was] raised in the proceeding later brought in the district court for Southern 

California by the trustee in behalf of the bankrupt to set aside the judgment” (emphasis added).  From 

Pepper v. Litton, 308 U.S. 295 (1939): “Courts of bankruptcy, in passing upon the validity and priority of 

claims, exercise equity powers, and have not only the power, but the duty, to disallow or subordinate 

claims if equity and fairness so require” (emphasis strongly added). 

In light of the above authorities and the true facts of the matter at bar, Adler ruled completely 

backwards.  Appellee’s complaint should have been dismissed with prejudice instead of my answer being 

stricken and my discharge being denied.  Adler’s actions have been abominable and are the very 

antithesis of justice.  Finally, Appellee should be heavily sanctioned for her role in the extreme 

misconduct directed at me.  And penalties for members of the system should be more severe than for the 

average person, not less severe (or non-existent), because they know the rules and law and enforce them 

on unsuspecting citizens every day.  I’ve spent well over 1000 hours on this case thus far.  Even at a mere 

$50 per hour, expenses would amount to more than $50,000.  Sanctions against Appellee should be 

punitive and therefore should be double or perhaps even triple that figure—a minimum of $100,000 or 

$150,000—and should come out of the pockets of the culpable people, not the taxpayers’. 

FINAL POINTS 

There is a gaping hole in the BAP’s “memorandum.”  They ignored 38+ lies and 12+ known federal 

crimes.  Other than a cursory denial, there’s not a word about any of this in their “memorandum.”  
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According to every other court nationwide, misconduct and nefarious activity should be front and center 

in any action.  On page 2, they try to make their memorandum look legitimate by pretending that I’m 

contriving everything.  They say I think there is a “vast conspiracy” as if I’m delusional.....except all the 

evidence proves otherwise.  It might not be a “conspiracy” by definition, but it was certainly a widespread 

concerted effort by certain elements to protect and/or help their friends and steer the case in the direction 

they wanted it to go at all costs. 

The BAP points to rules 7054-2, 9013-10, and 9021-1(b)(1)(A), which allegedly allow prevailing 

parties to write orders, and says, “In short, the fact that the [A]UST drafted proposed orders and lodged 

them with the court is not evidence of either wrongdoing or court bias.”  Firstly, 9021-1(b)(1)(A) is for 

the central district, not the southern district.  Secondly, 9013-10 concerns non-contested motions.  I 

contested everything Mihelic submitted—either verbally or in writing.  Thirdly, 7054-2 points to 7054-3, 

which says in (b), “The Notice of Lodgment must inform the opposing party that any objection to the 

form or content of the Lodged Order, and an alternative Proposed Order, must be filed and served within 

7 days.....”  The order entered on January 19, 2021, (doc. no. 80) only gave 5 days, not 7.  Some provided 

no such notice whatsoever, the one in doc. no. 31, for example.  Regardless, for the few I found with the 

required notice, Criminals would have ignored any objections anyway, as they did with all objections I 

submitted.  Finally, no known rule allows for parties to write tentative rulings or minute orders, even 

though it’s clear Mihelic essentially wrote them since they’re peppered with her trademark lies.  

Regardless of all this, even if the rules do allow for a litigant to write any orders, nothing can be found 

that permits lies to be part of such orders or for important wording to be omitted.  While “the fact that the 

[A]UST drafted proposed orders and lodged them with the court is not evidence of either wrongdoing or 

court bias,” the fact that the rulings and orders are bursting at their seams with lies most definitely is.  I 

gave the BAP the benefit of the doubt and didn’t call them criminals on my website and in my book until 

they proved that they were by violating 18 U.S. Code §§ 2, 3, and 4. 

The syndicate is usually extremely particular about the wording of documents, even down to the 

punctuation level.  Cases have been decided by something as seemingly innocuous as a missing or 
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misplaced comma.  In fact, O’Connor v. Oakhurst Dairy, 851 F.3d 69 (1st Cir. 2017), 16-1901 was one 

such matter.  The appellate judge said, “For want of a comma, we have this case.”  The appellate court 

reversed the district’s decision, and the case was settled for $5,000,000.  If something as small as a 

missing comma can have such an enormous impact on a case’s outcome, missing words will have an even 

greater impact.  As an example of how a court document or order can be massively impacted when words 

are omitted, observe the drastic difference between the meanings of two sentences when a mere three 

words are removed from the first.  The original sentence is: 

The United States legal system is trying to eradicate the world’s largest crime syndicate. 

With the words removed, the meaning changes significantly—and becomes far more accurate: 

The United States legal system is the world’s largest crime syndicate. 

O’Connor was settled for millions of dollars—all for something as miniscule as a missing comma—not 

entire missing words in adversarial documents and court orders, such as the nine missing in the court 

order entered on March 29, 2021: “and of any other communication from or to him.”  See doc. no. 134 

and exhibit “L.”  The writer of that order—almost certainly Mihelic—attempted to conceal one of 

Mihelic’s crimes.  Mihelic had the gall to call my mentioning of this a “red herring” in one of her filings.  

It’s not; it’s a smoking gun.  That order says, “There is no evidence that the [A]UST has had phone call 

conversations with those parties.”  There’s plenty of evidence; it’s just that Adler and Mihelic tried to 

hide some of it by illegally quashing the subpoena and lying in responses to requests for production of 

documents.  Other than a cursory denial, Mihelic and Adler cannot truly deny their misconduct and 

crimes because I have too much proof, which is why I sued them and the acting United States trustee in 

state court. 

Adler blessed this cover-up of perjury by completely neglecting certain things I requested during 

discovery in an attempt to absolve Mihelic from one of her crimes.  See doc. no. 134 and exhibit “L.”  In 

Adler’s mind, the DOI can do no wrong, or at least she refuses to recognize the wrongdoing.  This is just 
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one instance of iniquitous activity.  The instant case is rife with such deception through wording 

omissions and manipulations.  Wording should matter to every court.  Forgetting everything else in this 

whole brief, this single piece of evidence alone should’ve been enough to remove the judge from my case 

and reverse her decisions; however, she’s since “retired.” 

Nobody in the DOI lifted a toxic finger to investigate the original fraudulent judgment.  In the 

view of everyone opposed to me, it’s not fraudulent simply because they don’t want to admit that it is—

just like they’re silence about fraud in the bankruptcy record is supposed to mean that nothing is 

fraudulent there either.  Such a perspective has nothing to do with reality since mountains of evidence 

exist proving otherwise.  The misconduct and blatant criminal acts at the hands of syndicate members in 

just one legal matter have given birth to six different legal battles for me, with a seventh and eighth 

looming on the horizon.  This is the system generating “work” for itself.
17

 

Government personnel associated with this case should be on their way to prison.  Sadly, the 

syndicate continues to circle the wagons.  Judges and members of the syndicate must stop treating rules 

and laws as mere recommendations, particularly when applied to themselves or their friends.  If they did, 

this appeal would have never been filed because the bankruptcy would have never been filed because the 

fraudulent judgment of November 3, 2015, would have never been issued in the first place!  “And law 

should have a moral fiber too, and our leaders should.....the law has to have a moral basis to it.”
18

  If 

something remedial isn’t done here and now, I assure everyone there will be a public firestorm unlike 

anything seen in the history of the world. 

It’s crystal clear that Adler had already decided the adversarial matter despite any potential 

evidence to the contrary of what Mihelic concocted.  It’s also crystal clear, based on Mihelic’s 

misconduct, that no matter what I did, she was going to do everything she could to block the discharge of 

the fraudulently created debt.  When she refused to acknowledge the underlying fraud despite me offering 

multiple times mountains of evidence in support of it, this becomes abundantly apparent.  She had every 
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intention of interfering with justice after she or someone else at the DOI got the call from Michaud within 

weeks of my chapter 7 petition filing.  Nobody can rightfully deny the evidence I’ve put forth in this 

motion and elsewhere.  I am in the fight of my life against an entity with a nearly infinite supply of money 

and power—the world’s largest crime syndicate—and that is likely supporting another criminal network 

on the East Coast as all evidence now strongly indicates. 

Keep in mind that Appellee is going to rely heavily on the bogus court record in her opposing 

brief and ignore the misconduct and crimes of Mihelic, Adler, and others because my evidence is 

irrefutable.  She also wants this court to similarly ignore said misconduct and crimes.  Understand, 

however, Mihelic and her friends at the DOI have essentially created the court record—a record that is 

based on lies, misconduct, and outright crime, not a record that is based on facts, evidence, and truth.  

Indeed, facts, evidence, and truth have been completely disregarded in this case.  Appellee has yet to 

write a single pleading, motion, or other document that isn’t riddled with lies.....and the judiciary allows it 

to continue unabated.  Accordingly, Appellee will build her “response” upon case law that is completely 

irrelevant, will argue nonsense, and will pretend that the court record is real.  Mark my words. 

CONCLUSION 

As a result of the breathtaking injustice in this and related cases and in order for any semblance of justice 

to be served, I am seeking: 

1. reversal/vacation of the order entered by the corrupt bankruptcy court on June 29, 2021, and the 

judgment by default entered on August 4, 2021 

2. discharge of the fraudulently created debt 

3. dismissal of Appellee’s complaint with prejudice 

4. sanctions of at least $12,300 to be imposed against Appellee 

5. all sanctions against me be vacated. 

    

September 26, 2022    

   Thomas Oliver 

        401-835-303 

        tomscotto@gmail.com  

When the legislative or executive functionaries act unconstitutionally, they are responsible to the people 

in their elective capacity.  The exemption of the judges from that is quite dangerous enough.  I know no 

safe depository of the ultimate powers of the society, but the people themselves. - Thomas Jefferson 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 36 of 112



 

APPENDIX

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 37 of 112



 

STATEMENT OF THE EVIDENCE 

The following statements are extremely close to what was actually said, if not exact quotes.  They are provided in the 

event that transcripts cannot be obtained at no additional financial burden to me. 

 Hearing on September 24, 2020 

Judge Adler asked me, “Are you a lawyer?” and then said, “You have a very elite understanding.....” 

 Hearing on December 17, 2020 

I asked Judge Adler, “Are you reading anything I send you?”  There was no reply to this question. 

----- 

After I said that I did not have the requested contact information for the parties who provided affidavits, Judge 

Adler responded, “I find that hard to believe.” 

 Hearing on January 14, 2021 

I stated, “Let me preface my response with this: nearly everything the Department of Injustice is submitting is 

lies.  I’ve filed several complaints against them for their violations of rules and law and criminal acts, and 

that’s what they don’t like.  They’ve repeatedly lied to me.  It’s been an incessant stream of lies—more than 

fifteen that I can prove as of today.  For example, they lied regarding the time a deposition must be taken.  

Rule 29 (a) says ‘a deposition may be taken before any person, at any time.’  On December 18th, I sent an 

email ‘provide the rule that states depositions must be held during the times you state and I will abide by that.’  

I got no response.  Everything is laid out in my complaints.” 

----- 

Judge Adler asked me, “Have you tried legal aid?” 

I replied, “Yes, but nobody will touch it.  There’s too much corruption.” 

Judge Adler said, “Well, I can’t help you.” 

 Hearing on March 18, 2021 

I stated, “It’s been lie after lie after lie from the Department of Injustice, and they’ve committed several 

crimes: perjury, fraud, misprision of felony.....possibly conspiracy.  And according to the federal rules of 

judicial oversight, when that’s reported, it’s supposed to be investigated.  You haven’t done that.  The only 

reason the Department of Injustice didn’t oppose this particular motion is that they probably thought they’d 

look awfully foolish pushing to keep a judge that they favored.  So you know, I will appeal if I’m forced to.  

I’m just asking for justice in the case.  It’s been twenty years.  I’d like to see justice just once!” 

Judge Adler lied, “This is the first I am hearing about any wrongdoing.” 

 Hearing on April 1, 2021 

I stated, “The writing style in your rulings, by the way, looks remarkably similar to Mihelic’s.” 

Judge Adler laughed and commented snidely, “Maybe she learned from somebody who’s been doing this for 

many more years than she has.” 

 Hearing on June 24, 2021 

After the lies in the court record and by Mihelic had been accepted as true and after Mihelic stated that I filed a 

motion to dismiss, Judge Adler said, “I see you’ve been busy writing another motion.”  The translation is: “I’m 

not going to read this one either; it’s just another nuisance that we have to deal with.” 

 Hearing on Unknown Date, but Believed to Be April 1, 2021 

Judge Adler only asked Mihelic: “What will you need to be ready for trial?” 
 

The undersigned hereby certifies under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States of America that the 

foregoing is true and correct. 

December 21, 2021  _____________________________________________ 

  Thomas Oliver 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 38 of 112



Exhibit A 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 39 of 112



Exhibit B 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 40 of 112



Exhibit C 

 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 41 of 112



Exhibit D 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 42 of 112



Exhibit E 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 43 of 112



Exhibit F 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 44 of 112



Exhibit G 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 45 of 112



Exhibit H 

 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 46 of 112



Exhibit I 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 47 of 112



Exhibit J 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 48 of 112



Exhibit K 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 49 of 112



Exhibit L 

 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 50 of 112



Exhibit M 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 51 of 112



Exhibit N 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 52 of 112



Exhibit O 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 53 of 112



Exhibit P 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 54 of 112



Exhibit Q 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 55 of 112



Exhibit R 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 56 of 112



Exhibit S 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 57 of 112



Exhibit T 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 58 of 112



Exhibit U 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 59 of 112



Exhibit V 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 60 of 112



Exhibit W 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 61 of 112



Exhibit X 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 62 of 112



Exhibit Y 

 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 63 of 112



Exhibit Z 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 64 of 112



Exhibit AA 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 65 of 112



Exhibit BB 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 66 of 112



Exhibit CC 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 67 of 112



Exhibit DD 

 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 68 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 69 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 70 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 71 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 72 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 73 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 74 of 112



Exhibit EE 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 75 of 112



Exhibit FF 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 76 of 112



Exhibit FF 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 77 of 112



Exhibit GG 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 78 of 112



Exhibit HH 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 79 of 112



Exhibit HH 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 80 of 112



Exhibit II 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 81 of 112



Exhibit JJ 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 82 of 112



Exhibit KK 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 83 of 112



Exhibit LL 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 84 of 112



Exhibit MM 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 85 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 86 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 87 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 88 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 89 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 90 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 91 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 92 of 112



Exhibit NN 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 93 of 112



Transcript 1 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 94 of 112



Transcript 2 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 95 of 112



Transcript 2 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 96 of 112



Transcript 3 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 97 of 112



Transcript 4 

Case: 22-60019, 09/26/2022, ID: 12550062, DktEntry: 9, Page 98 of 112



1 

Thomas Oliver 

3070 Bristol Street, Suite 660 

Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

401-835-3035 

tomscotto@gmail.com 

 

SUPERIOR COURT OF CALIFORNIA 

COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 

 

      

THOMAS OLIVER,           CASE NO. 37-2021-00037057-CU-NP-CTL 

Plaintiff            JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 

        

v.             COMPLAINT FOR TORTIOUS  

             CONDUCT (AMENDED WITH 
KRISTIN TAVIA MIHELIC,           DEFENDANT NAMES) 

TIFFANY LOUISE CARROLL, and  

LOUISE DECARL ADLER,          Judge Katherine Bacal 

Defendants            Department C-69 

 

 

Pursuant to CA Civ. Code § 1710, CA Civ. Code § 3333, CA BPC § 6068, CA Pen. Code § 115, CA Pen. 

Code § 118, CA Pen. Code § 134, CA Pen. Code § 135, CA Pen. Code § 523, 42 U.S.C. § 1983, the 

Constitution of California, and the U.S. Constitution, Plaintiff brings this complaint against the 

defendants as a result of their tortious and criminal acts committed on many dates, the first of which was 

after February 28, 2020.  “Defendant” will mean both the singular and the plural in this complaint. 

JURISDICTION OF THE COURT 

This court has subject matter jurisdiction under CA CCP § 395.  This court has personal jurisdiction 

because Plaintiff and Defendants are residents of San Diego County.  Venue is proper according to CA 

CCP § 395. 

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS 

Defendant has ignored rules of procedure, the code of conduct, the law, and the U.S. Constitution and has 

committed crimes against Plaintiff in a separate action proceeding in another court (hereinafter “separate 

action”).  Defendant’s misconduct in the separate action has caused financial and psychological injury to 
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Plaintiff.  As such, Defendant is liable for both compensatory and punitive damages. 

COUNT ONE: PERJURY 

1. Defendant has not been truthful in the separate action.  Indeed, Defendant has withheld evidence, 

lied well in excess of thirty times, and perjured herself at least twice.  The date Defendant first 

began these acts was after February 28, 2020. 

2. On December 9, 2020, in the separate action, Defendant committed at least one known count of 

perjury when she stated that “no such documents exist” in her response to request number eleven 

in Plaintiff’s request for production of documents, “Provide an accounting of the dates, times, and 

lengths of calls made to and received from Attorney Douglas H. Smith and of any other 

communication from or to him,” but inadvertently provided proof that such documents do exist in 

a stack of more than 500 pages of photocopied email transmissions. 

3. On March 9, 2021, in the separate action, Defendant committed perjury in an ex parte motion.  

She stated, “The [d]efendant filed his [o]bjection to the [m]otion on March 4, 2021 (Docket No. 

118).  The [d]efendant’s filing was one day late.”  The objection in question was filed on March 

3, 2021, and within the deadline, not on March 4, 2021, as she falsely claims.  An amended copy 

was filed on March 4, 2021, per the clerk’s direction because there was a $10 discrepancy in the 

original.  On May 25, 2021, Defendant contradicted herself when she stated in a declaration in the 

separate action that the same objection was filed “on March 3, 2021 (Docket No. 117).”  In that 

declaration, she says, “A copy of the [r]equests for [a]dmission and [c]ertificate of [s]ervice is 

attached hereto as ‘Exhibit A.’ ”  As of June 1, 2021, no “Exhibit A” was associated with any 

document filed into the separate action on May 25, 2021.  Furthermore, the dates she reports are 

almost all incorrect.  For example, she dated her requests January 28, 2021, not the 29th and 

accuses Plaintiff of missing a hearing on the future date of June 3, 2021.  Moreover, no hearing 

was held on June 3, 2021, for the separate action.  Since her “declaration” was signed “under 
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penalty of perjury” and was replete with incorrect dates and untruthful statements and a contained 

a clear contradiction, she committed perjury yet again. 

4. Defendant’s acts in the separate action have caused sanctions to be fraudulently levied against 

Plaintiff in the amount of $5,781.55 ($2,199.00 on January 4, 2021, and $3,582.55 on January 25, 

2021) and a fraudulent judgment to be issued against him on August 4, 2021. 

5. As a result of Defendant’s tortious and criminal acts in the separate action, Plaintiff has suffered 

actual damages of $5,781.55. 

COUNT TWO: VIOLATION OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS 

6. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through five. 

7. In the separate action, Defendant has intentionally ignored the rules of procedure, the rules of 

conduct, the law, and the U.S. Constitution—specifically the Due Process Clause of the Fifth 

Amendment and the Assistance of Counsel Clause of the Sixth Amendment—and has committed 

crimes against Plaintiff.  The date Defendant first began these acts was after February 28, 2020. 

8. On April 3, 2020, Plaintiff paid a $335 filing fee in the separate action when he shouldn’t have 

because he is indigent but was coerced to pay the fee as a result of Defendant’s actions, which is a 

violation of his right to Due Process under the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

9. On several occasions in the separate action and in violation of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth 

Amendment of the U.S. Constitution, Plaintiff’s motions were blocked due to Defendant’s 

actions.  Relevant motions were filed on October 26, 2020; February 9, 2021 (two on this date); 

February 13, 2021; and June 23, 2021.  Oral oppositions to motions were given by Plaintiff on 

January 14, 2021, and other dates but also blocked due to Defendant’s actions—in violation of 

the Due Process Clause of the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

10. On several unknown dates after February 28, 2020, Plaintiff’s filings in the separate action were 
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not read by the court due to Defendant’s actions.  This is also a violation of the Due Process 

Clause of the Fifth Amendment of the U.S. Constitution. 

11. On March 29, 2021, Plaintiff was denied appointment of counsel due to Defendant’s actions.  

This is a violation of the Assistance of Counsel Clause of the Sixth Amendment. 

12. As a result of Defendant’s tortious and criminal acts in the separate action, Plaintiff has suffered 

actual damages of $335.00. 

COUNT THREE: FALSIFYING JUDICIAL AND PUBLIC RECORDS AND DOCUMENTS 

13. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through twelve. 

14. On March 29, 2021, Defendant lodged a falsified document into the court record of the separate 

action.  This document wrongly stated that “evidence [Plaintiff] attaches in support (an email 

chain) has been altered to make it appear that he offered deposition times beginning at 10:00 

AM.”  Plaintiff has not altered evidence in the separate action.   

15. On March 30, 2021, Defendant lodged a falsified document into the court record of the separate 

action.  This particular document stated that Plaintiff “only request[ed] ‘an accounting of the 

dates, times, and lengths of calls made to and received from’” a certain party but leaves out nine 

crucial words of Plaintiff, “and of any other communication from or to him,” which could have 

been done in an attempt to cover up Defendant’s crime of perjury.  Her statement was made 

regarding two individuals, Douglas H. Smith and Joseph L. Michaud.  To Plaintiff’s recollection, 

other docket entries and documents have been similarly falsified by Defendant. 

COUNT FOUR: FALSIFYING EVIDENCE 

16. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through fifteen. 

17. On December 9, 2020, Defendant untruthfully stated that “no such documents exist” in her 

response to request number eleven in Plaintiff’s request for production of documents in the 
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separate action: “Provide an accounting of the dates, times, and lengths of calls made to and 

received from Attorney Douglas H. Smith and of any other communication from or to him.”  

However, she inadvertently provided proof that such documents do exist in a stack of more than 

500 pages of photocopied email transmissions. 

18. In the separate action, Defendant untruthfully stated in her motion dated February 17, 2021, that 

Plaintiff “failed to provide a reasonable time when his deposition could be conducted” and 

“Despite numerous requests.....that [Plaintiff] identify dates where he could start the deposition 

during normal business hours, [he] refused to do so.” 

19. In the separate action, Defendant untruthfully stated in her motion filed on March 1, 2021, “Now 

in his [m]otion filed nine months after the commencement of the lawsuit,” but Plaintiff’s motion 

was filed less than six and one-half months afterward.  Provisions in this fourth count are merely 

three examples.  Many more exist. 

COUNT FIVE: ACTUAL FRAUD/CONCEALMENT 

20. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through nineteen. 

21. On December 9, 2020, Defendant untruthfully stated that “no such documents exist” in her 

response to request number ten in Plaintiff’s request for production of documents in the separate 

action: “Provide an accounting of the dates, times, and lengths of calls made to and received from 

Joseph L. Michaud and of any other communication from or to him.”  Defendant has refused to 

supply any of this information. 

22. On December 9, 2020, Defendant untruthfully stated that “no such documents exist” in her 

response to request number eleven in Plaintiff’s request for production of documents in the 

separate action: “Provide an accounting of the dates, times, and lengths of calls made to and 

received from Attorney Douglas H. Smith and of any other communication from or to him.”  

Defendant has refused to supply all of this information. 
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COUNT SIX: LOST EARNING CAPACITY 

23. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through twenty-two. 

24. The tortious and criminal acts of Defendant commencing after February 28, 2020, in the separate 

action have resulted in a fraudulent judgment being issued against Plaintiff on August 4, 2021.  

This has caused him to suffer the imminent loss of $1.7 million in future income and property 

asset value since a property he manages is now in jeopardy of being stolen thus cutting his 

income stream from it, reducing his total income—which is already around the poverty level—by 

approximately 40 percent, and pushing him closer towards extreme poverty. 

COUNT SEVEN: INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL/FINANCIAL DISTRESS 

25. Plaintiff incorporates by reference the allegations in paragraphs one through twenty-four. 

26. Defendant has intentionally inflicted emotional and financial distress upon Plaintiff as a result of 

her tortious and criminal acts in the separate action, and Plaintiff has suffered a great deal.  The 

date Defendant first began these acts was after February 28, 2020.  Thus far, Plaintiff has had to 

spend approximately 500 painstaking hours on the separate action—built upon a baseless 

complaint—because of Defendant’s actions. 

27. Plaintiff has been attacked repeatedly by Defendant and various associates of the separate action, 

and although he has filed complaints with several oversight agencies, he has received no 

assistance, which has further added to his stress levels.  Additionally, he has been in fear for his 

life and under tremendous emotional and financial distress due to the impending loss of a 

significant portion of his income because of Defendant’s tortious and criminal acts.  The date 

Defendant first began these acts was after February 28, 2020. 

28. Plaintiff made Defendant aware that her complaint in the separate action was baseless.  Plaintiff 

also informed Defendant during a phone conference on January 14, 2021; again on March 18, 

2021; and once again on April 1, 2021, of Defendant’s repeated lying and criminal acts, such as 
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perjury, fraud, misprision of felony, and possibly conspiracy to commit fraud—all of which went 

ignored. 

29. Defendant makes more than $500,000.00 per year and is known to own properties worth well 

over $4,000,000.00, but quite likely has assets that exceed $5,000,000.00.  As such, punitive 

damages of less than six figures will not be appropriate since the financial impact upon Defendant 

will be insignificant. 

DEMAND FOR JUDGMENT 

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff demands judgment against Defendant in the principal amount of $6,116.55 in 

compensatory damages and interest in the amount of 7 percent per annum from March 1, 2020, to present 

per the California Constitution, Article 15, section 1; an additional judgment in the principal amount of 

$1,700,000.00 in compensatory damages; and an additional judgment of $500,000.00 in punitive 

damages; together with court costs, fees, and any other relief or compensation deemed appropriate. 

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL 

Plaintiff hereby demands a jury trial on all issues raised in this complaint. 

 

 

 

September 14, 2021    

   Thomas Oliver, pro se 

   3070 Bristol Street, Suite 660 

   Costa Mesa, CA 92626 

        401-835-3035 

        tomscotto@gmail.com 

 

 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________________ 

When the legislative or executive functionaries act unconstitutionally, they are responsible to the people 

in their elective capacity.  The exemption of the judges from that is quite dangerous enough.  I know no 

safe depository of the ultimate powers of the society, but the people themselves. - Thomas Jefferson 
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